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Chairman Dominic Pane called the July 14, 2021 Zoom meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.
I.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

II.

ROLL CALL AND SEATING OF ALTERNATES
Commissioners Present
Chairman Domenic Pane
Commissioner Michael Fox
Commissioner Garrett Havens
Commissioner Stanley Sobieski
Commissioner Stephen Woods
Commissioner Hyman Braverman-A
CommissionerThomas Gill-A
Commissioner Bryan Haggerty-A
Commissioners Absent
Commissioner Anthony Claffey
Commissioner David Lenares-excused
Staff Present
Renata Bertotti, town Planner
Erik Hinckley, Asst. Town Planner/Zoning Enforcement Officer

Commissioner Haggerty was seated for Commissioner Claffey and Commissioner Gill was
seated for Commissioner Lenares.
III.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Renata Bertotti: If 1 may, 1 will propose a slight change, and it's not necessary to the agenda,
it's a change to a document attached to the agenda. 1 wanted to say this early in the meeting so
if anyone was in the room waiting to hear these specific things that 1 would recommend we
remove fortonight, they will know ahead oftime. As 1 was working on the legislative summary it
turned out to be too big of a presentation. 1 ended up with about thirty slides. All of this stuff is
new and important and 1 wanted the Commission to have some time to actually not rush through
it, so 1 propose tonight I address the first five items on that document that was included in your
packet and then we shall the other five at the following meeting. Thank you.
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PUBLIC PARTICIPATION (For items not listed on the agenda; speakers limited to
two minutes.)

None
V.

ZONING ENFORCEMENT OFFICER REPORT

Erik Hinckley: Good evening Chairman Pane and Commissioners. I'm sure that you have all
had a chance to review the report. Are there any questions, concerns?
Chairman Pane: It appears Erik that we have had, we have four cases on the chickens and the
roosters so I would imagine that it comes in handy to have the regulations.
Erik Hinckley: I've been working with residents on that, and a couple of new ones just popped
up this week, so we're working through it.
Commissioner Sobieski: Some of these that are resolved, are they going to be removed at any
point, or do they just stay there?
Erik Hinckley: They stay on if there is any kind of update, like in July you won't see this
anymore, you will only see something that has a July date on it. So anything that has a June
date attached to it, you will see that since this is the June report.
Commissioner Fox: Has there been any action on Stamm Road.
Erik Hinckley: No, as you can see by the date, 1 turned this over to the Town Attorney for action
and 1 have not heard from him. 1 know he is busy, busy doing tax appeals, so that is where we
are with that situation.
Commissioner Fox: Okay, thank you.
VI.

REMARKS BY COIVIMISSIONERS
None

VII.

PUBLIC HEARING:
Petition 26-21: SDecial Permit (Sec. 3.4.9) and Associated Site Plan to allow
interior lots at 285 Connecticut Ave. Applicant and Contact: Lary Webster
Owner, JCB Management, LLC.
B. Petition 28-21: SDecial Permit (Sec. 3.4.9) and Associated Site Plan to allow
interior lots at 293 Connecticut Ave, Applicant and Contact: Lary Webster,
Owner: JCB Management II, LLC.

A.
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Chairman Pane: Renata, is it okay to have Petition 26-21 and 28-21 together?
Renata Bertotti: Mr. Chair, with the Commission's permission I recommend that you review this
as such because these are two lots are adjacent to one another and this project, while it
originates off of two different lots, it should be treated as on project, so the information that you
will get should be looked at together.
Alan Bongiovanni: Good evening Mr. Chairman, Members ofthe Commission, Staff, my name
is Alan Bongiovanni, my office is at 170 Pane Road here in Newington. I'm a licensed land
surveyor in the State of Connecticut, and 1 prepared the plans for these applications that are
before you on both 285 and 293 Connecticut Avenue, on behalf of Larry Webster, the applicant
and potential developer for these projects.
The applications that we have at these public hearings are both interior lots, and James, if you
could go to probably page 4. If you look on the right hand side ofthe plan, towards the title, we
have a dashed line and it shows the division between the properties to the south, 285
Connecticut Avenue and to the north 293 Connecticut Avenue. These two parcels together are
about 2.7 acres each, the aggregate of both applications are about 5.47 acres. The property is
located in the R-12 Zone. All ofthe land surrounding these properties including across the
street is also in the R-12 Zone. This happens to be the last parcel of land that has not been
developed as a single family subdivision. You have Cedar Mountain on the east, Main Street
and beyond to the west.
We are asking for special permits to allow interior lots. We looked at this parcel of property,
James there is a colored drawing that we submitted, I'd like to go to the six lot color plan ifwe
could? Thank you. We looked at the best way to develop this piece of property, for it's intended
use. It's zoned as an R-12, the owner ofthe property has the right to enjoy that property for
what it is zoned, so as a single family R-12 development. We looked at what we would be
allowed to do as of right for a straight conventional subdivision according to the Town of
Newington's Zoning and Subdivision regulations, so in an R-12 Zone, the plan that is shown
before you was our first conceptual layout. We looked at how to best develop this property and
maximize it's potential. The Plan that you see before you represents that. It shows ten lots, all
those ten lots meet and/or exceed all of the dimensional and bulk requirements of the Town of
Newington Zonings regutations and the subdivision, and all ofthat takes place outside ofthe
regulated area to the west.
To the rear ofthe property we have a tributary to Mill Brook, and the associated wetlands and
flood plain on the low land on that.
In working with the developer, we presented this plan to him and talked about this would require
a public road, public utilities, meeting the subdivision regulations. We have an established
neighborhood around this that houses probably average 1600 to 2400 square feet, they have a
vintage from the sixties or seventies, some ofthe eighties and occasionally something newer,
but or the most part was developed in the sixties and seventies, and they are typical of many of
the neighborhoods in the Town of Newington.
The developers desire was to create a development that would fit within the neighborhood, so it
would be something complementary but now larger than, or smaller than, but consistent with
how the neighborhood was developed. In talked about the improvement and creating a ten lot

Newington TPZ Commission

July 14, 2021
Page4

subdivision, it quickly became evident that the cost to construct these improvements provided a
real challenge. We analyzed the zoning regulations and we looked at, our proposal, as they are
two separate parcels creating two three lot subdivisions with two interior lots without creating a
public road.
In looking at how to develop this, we looked at the expenses to create a public road, and
keeping with the theme of building something consistent with the neighborhood, it quickly
became clear that we couldn't afford to put the public road in and keep the houses consistent
with the neighborhood. The road, as shown on the ten lot conceptual plan, is a little over 500
feet. In conversation with the Town Engineer yesterday, he had quoted me a number of new
sewer and water, in the street is about $1,000 a foot. So sewer and water itself would be about
a half a million dollars and by the time you construct the road to the town's specifications,
provide the electric, gas, and other utilities along with the street lighting, and then storm
drainage which is significant when you talk about constructing a town road, you are clearly at a
million or more dollars just to construct the road.
In the six lot situation that we are proposing with a private drive, in preparing a development
such as this, it mirrors the same traditional subdivisions that we have around the neighborhood.
We access it with a private driveway that does not have to be built to town specifications, does
not require the same drainage, nor does the MDC require main line sewer/water to be
constructed. These would be served by laterals. Sewer and water is available through the
whole frontage by the MDC on Connecticut Avenue.
Housing today, typical houses such as this 2,000 square foot roughly cost about $200 per
square foot, including the land, site work and construction ofthe home. Let me back up, $200
per square foot, maybe four or five months ago, and the cost of building materials today, it has
increased significantly, but we expect that to come back. A 2,000 square foot home at $200.00
per square foot, you're looking at about a $400,000 house. If we develop this as a public road,
That same house would be $500,000 or more. It didn't make sense to try to shoehorn in an
overpriced development with the potential of not being successful in this area. This is a solution
that 1 think should be the neighbors more content, there are four less homes than we are
allowed as of right, and it has the same feel as the traditional subdivision. The Town doesn't
have the maintenance ofthe road, or the utilities and we have lots that meet and/or exceed all
ofthe regulations.
That is an overview of the development, how we got to this point. I'd like to talk a little bit about
the site itself and the requirements ofthe special permit. As 1 said, the total site combined is
about 5.47 acres, fronting on the east on Connecticut Avenue, and surrounded nori:h, west and
south by existing R-12 residential lots. All ofthem are developed atthis time. The rear ofthe
property again, we have a tributary of Mill Brook and associated wetlands and upland review
area. Our proposal, and we talked early on with the Town Planner, of different options of
developing this separate, two separate three lot subdivisions, and we got some comments and
some recommendations from the Planner so this is the application that we have before you.
The topography raises gently about eight to ten feet from Connecticut Avenue and going
towards the west about a quarter way through to the west and then it gently slopes to the west
to the watercourse in the back.
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This is ourtechnical subdivision or plat map which comes with both applications. We have
three lots to the south, the shaded areas represent what would be the access to the utilities and
then we have the three lots to the north. Lots one and six are conventional lots, they are full
frontage R-12 lots, with no special permit required. The special permits come in for lots 2 and 3
and 4 and 5 in the upper, 293 Connecticut Avenue parcel.
Each lot would have its own dedicated twenty foot right of way as required by the zoning
regulations, the lots, as interior lots have to be a minimum of one and half times the zone
requirements, so one and a halftimes 12,000 square feet, they have to be a minimum of 18,000
square feet, exclusive of the twenty foot access strip. Lot 2 would have 19,288, lot 3 would
have 72,000, lot four would have 85,000 and lot five would have 24,000 exclusive of the
driveway, so the lots are well oversized, they are taking advantage of the land that is there and
providing an additional separation between the homes, giving it a nicer feel.
The requirements continue, each lot, of course we have 285 Connecticut Avenue and then the
northern part is 293, each one ofthose is allowed to be divided into two interior lots, so the
application would conform to that, each lot has to comply with the setback requirements, alt of
the lots do that and at least to the minimum and possibly exceed it, and as 1 said, we have the
twenty foot access strips to all four lots. There is a provision in the regulations that says that
they should be separated by the front width of a lot in that zone, unless you have a maintenance
and access agreement and a common driveway. We have done that, we have actually
prepared and provided that documentation prepared by Mr. Webster's attorneys for staff review
a few weeks ago. We do meet that requirement. There is a requirement ifthe driveway is in
excess of 500 feet, then you have certain requirements, and our driveway is in the 375 foot
range so those don't apply. There is also a section talking about if it is over 500 feet it needs to
be twenty foot wide. I'm going to just sidestep here a little bit.
When we first submitted this application the fire marshal at the time, a couple of months ago,
who is no longerwith us, did review the plans, gave comments, ourzoning regulations orthe
subdivision regulations call for 18 foot wide, he recommended that we go to 20 foot wide on the
driveway, for a paved surface and we are agreeing to do that, and we have made that
modification to the plan, although it is not required for his approval, we have done that.
1 talked about the interior lots being next to each other, unless there is a common driveway,
maintenance and access agreement, and we have done that, and the last item that they
Commission may require, slope rights, and 1 think when the Commission and staff review the
grading plans that we have as part ofthe application they will be able to make a better
determination. Myself as a designer, don't think there is any need for grading rights, but if the
staff or Commission has concerns with that, we'd be happy to address that.
1 think that concludes my presentation of the general aspects of this. 1 would just like to go into
the procedures and standards for all special permits and will discuss how we meet all of those.
There are seven items that need to be addressed, the first, A. is need for the proposed use in
the proposed location. It is R-12 residential zone, it is zoned for that use, l think if anybody
listens to the news today there is a national housing shortage. Mr. Webster, the proposed
developer, is, has requests on a weekly basis has built in town before, when would he have
houses available, is there anything they can look at, so there is a lot of interest in this
development and 1 see that across all of my clients in the greater Hartford area, that there is not
a lot of inventory, there is a lot of pent up demand, so this is a supply and demand issue, and
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that would demonstrate the need. B. The existing and probable future character of the
neighborhood in which the use is located; the entire neighborhood, the entire street from
Hartford Avenue down to the center ofthe Town, Cedar Mountain, Main Street to the west, and
further, it is all R-12 Zone. It is all single family residential and developed. This is the last
parcel of land that has not been developed into a single family subdivision, we will maintain the
same character as everything around us. This would be a traditional subdivision, six lots that
would be consistent with what we have in the neighborhood, except newer and much more
energy efficient. Item C, the size, type, and location of main and accessory buildings in relation
to one another, and in relation to other structures in the vicinity, our colored plan, the six lot 1
think clearly shows there are minimum requirements, rear yard, side yard and front yard
setbacks. These lots are designed to meet all of those requirements so the relationship of one
building to another interior to this development, and then to the neighboring properties is what
the zoning regulations call for. It is consistent with our regulations, there is no waiver request
for any of the spatial requirements here and that is clearly shown on this plan.
Item D, traffic circulation, and 1 won't read the whole paragraph, but it talks more about larger
projects, special projects in excess of 40,000 square feet, this is six single family homes, with a
single point of access. This is the safest way to access these six houses at a single point so
that you do not have competing driveways close to each other, that is one of the reasons why
we designed it this way. The Institute of Traffic Transportation Engineers manual for trip
generation, lists a single family house, traditional subdivision as ten trips per day, per house.
That would be five trips in and five trips out so on any given day you an expect thirty vehicles
throughout a twenty-four hour period leaving the site, and thiri:y vehicles coming in. During the
peak hours you can expect an average of one car per hour leaving this site. Given the size of
the neighborhood, just the surrounding area, and I'll cite this again, from Hartford Avenue down
to the center oftown, Cedar Mountain, Main Street, is probably somewhere in the neighborhood
of 800 to 1000 houses, this would represent a fraction of one percent of what the existing
background traffic is in that area, without anybody from any other areas of town or other towns,
going through the Connecticut Avenue area, so this is, in simple words, a very insignificant
issue when you talk about six residential houses in a neighborhood as large as this.
The availability of public water and sewer, the MIDC sewer and water are right on the street,
also there is a component about drainage. We have a water course in the rear. We have met
with town staff, we have a conceptual design that we are finalizing, that will attenuate the
increase in runoff from impervious areas, it will also treat the storm water for water quality, it's a
multi-step drainage system where we have long linear swales without a structured underground
drainage and directed towards the west ofthe property, outside ofthe regulated area, and then
there would be water treatment type structure capturing that water and then metering it out
slowly.
Item F, type of location of display signs, as this is a residential use, that wouldn't be applicable.
Item G, safeguards to protect adjacent property and the neighborhood from detriment including
but not limiting to proper buffering. As this is the same use for all of the neighboring properties
that exist today and zoned from that we are proposing there, we can't see any detriment to this
neighborhood. These in general would probably as commonly happens, because you can built
a newer house, newer technologies, more energy efficient, even though it may be the same size
as an existing house, the value is there, it costs more. So ifthe price on the new houses would
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be higher, and that will generally raise the neighborhood prices as well, so we don't expect any
detriment by creating a new subdivision near the existing houses in the area.
I think that concludes my presentation, if you have any questions, I'd be happy to answer them.
Chairman Pane: Alan, those are the seven points from Section 5.2.6 which are the procedures
and standards for all special permits, correct?
Alan Bongiovanni: Yes.
Chairman Pane: Okay, thank you. 1 don't know if Renata wants to talk about this before we go
to public participation.
Renata Bertotti: 1 can just essentially just summarize some of our comments and perhaps give
you, not necessarily a recommendation but some of our outstanding things that we have
identified on this.
We, while there is, originally as Mr. Bongiovanni noted, when we reviewed this, there was some
communication going on between the Fire Marshal and the Engineering, Zoning, etc., the Fire
Marshal's request 1 believe has been addressed. 1 see on this plan that the proposed driveway
is likely 20 feet. 1 would like that confirmed once we have plans, revised plans submitted to us
and Mr. Bongiovanni knows about this, so just in advance that all of these are not a matter of
conflict, they are a matter that we have agreed on and just waiting for documentation. We're
also requesting a formal submission of the traffic statement. This is a six lot subdivision, 1 do
not believe that this is going to create some sort of exorbitant generation of traffic, however, that
is a requirement of our special permit application and 1 would like to see that signed by Mr.
Bongiovanni and his firm.
The drainage report, there is, my understanding is that there was a communication at the
meetings between our engineer and Mr. Bongiovanni and that they came to an agreement as to
how to best design the topology for drainage and sewer water in order to accomplish what our
storm water management plan requires, Again, that document is still outstanding and will be
accompanied with these plans that include all of these conditions for us to review.
With that being said, 1 will also confirm that early in the process 1 met with Mr. Bongiovanni and
we discussed different layouts for these lots and actually, 1 believe that I had recommended
combining what previously was shown to me as several cuts in Connecticut Avenue and several
driveways exiting out onto that road, into this combined access to reduce any impact to the
neighborhood.
So with all ofthat in mind, 1 would also just remind you that we do have some public comment
so when that time comes if 1 can read them into the record a couple ofthings that we received in
the process.
Chairman Pane: Absolutely, thank you Renata. We are going to open this up nowfor public .
Anybody wishing to speak in favor of this apptication, please raise your hand.
James Krupienski: We have one hand raised, has been raised for a bit, so 1 can't guarantee
whether it is in favor or opposed.
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Chairman Pane: That's okay. Michael, do you want to join? Can you hear us?
James Krupienski: He hasn't unmuted his microphone as ofyet
Chairman Pane: Whether you are in favor of not, you can unmute and speak if you would like.
James Krupienski: I'm prompting him, but not getting a response back.
Chairman Pane: Anybody else wish to speak in favor of this application? Anybody wishing to
speak in favor. Anybody wishing to speak in opposition to this application, please raise your
hand. Anybody wishing to speak in opposition?
Caro Santoro, 93 Francis Avenue: I was under the impression that there had been a petition
from about 65 people who were in opposition to this. The last time that came up at the meeting,
that was never mentioned, so could you clarify that for me,because1 am in opposition to it.
Chairman Pane: Do you want to state any reasons why?
Caro Santoro: Right, because it was never mentioned so the rest ofthe people on the call
would not know. 1 just want to know if that was correct, was there a petition, or was there not,
and if so, how many signatures?
Chairman Pane: When you are all done with all of your questions, then we will turn it over to
getting your questions answered. Is there anything else you want to know?
Caro Santoro: The only other thing, and 1 don't know if this is the time, but last time on the call 1
was under the impression that the Newington Junction discussion would be tabled, until we
could meet in person, and on the agenda two weeks from now, it appears that the Newington
Junction is now going to do a Zoom thing again, discussing that. Those are my only questions.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much Caro, we'll answerthem.
address her questions on the petition?

Renata, would you like to

Renata Bertotti: 1 certainly can. We did receive a petition signed by 88 signatures, and those
sigmates were signed from 59 different address, ofwhich two were out oftown, and what 1 was
going to do after other people spoke was to read into the record the language of the petition and
report on that.
Chairman Pane: Thank you Renata, and as far as the West hiill Caro, we will be speaking
about it, we're going to be holding a public, in person meeting soon, and we haven't come close
to making a presentation ofwhat we want to change forWest Hill, so when we do propose
something, it will be in person, correct Renata?
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Renata Bertotti: Absolutely Mr. Chair. 1 think even in these very initial, very preliminary stages
of discussion, we decided to wait until we can do even those in person so the people will know.
The agenda that 1 issue is an a tentative agenda for the business that 1 strive to have on your
agenda for the next meeting, there is a waiver to that effect on the top of it. Please follow, that
is a good document to kind ofjust not to miss something.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much Renata. Is there anybody else from the public that
would like to speak in opposition. Michael, 1 know you have had your hand up, please un-mute
and go right ahead.
James Krupienski: Still not getting a response Mr. Chairman.
Chairman Pane: Okay, I'm going to go back to the applicant right now to see if the applicant
wants to address anything.
Alan Bongiovanni: 1 don't think there is anything for us to address, 1 understand that there may
be some people, some neighbors that may be in opposition, but 1 think that when they look at
the merits ofthe application, what the applicant could do, as of right, without any participation
from the public, this is a better solution. It allows four lots to be built as opposed to sticking to a
town road standard that would outprice the neighborhood.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much. I'm going to turn the meeting back to Renata, she has
some additional public comments that I'm going to have her read in, and then 1 will give the
applicant the opportunity to answer any questions from that reading. So Renata, so could you
read anything into the minutes that you have received?
Renata Bertotti: Absolutely, and we will split this between myself and Erik. 1 received two emails, one was received yesterday, July 13 at 9:33 p.m. Erik, l will ask Erik to read that one,
and 1 just received an e-mail that 1 noticed now in my in-box, it was like after 5:00 p.m. to day,so
1 will have to read that off of my actual e-mail. Before we get into that, let me first read the
language ofthe petition that was submitted to my office in a position, a day before our last
meeting. It reads, the title reads, Community Members against Connecticut Avenue
Subdivision.
"This
petition is in opposition ofthe special permit application 26-21 and 28-21 for subdivision of
land and building ofsix houses at 285 and 293 Connecticut Avenue in Newington. We as
community members feel strongly that the proposals will negatively impact our area and the
applicant's fail to meet the regulations set forth by the Town of Newington. The submitted
application fails to meet the separation requirement of, I'm adding this, of provision 3-3.4 9 (i) of
the Newington Zoning Regulations which reads, no two interior lots shall have frontage on the
same street any closer to each other than the minimum lot width for that zone, except for two
contiguous interior may be approved sharing a common driveway and the application for such
interior lots shall include an agreement that requires that the owners of said driveway will share
the responsibility for its maintenance. Additionally, the proposed subdivision does not comply
with the subdivision regulations pursuant to Section 3. 5, only one interior lot is allowed per
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subdivision. Section 3.5.3 required frontage and access, no lot shall be approved that does not
have frontage on and access to public street which is constructed or bonded for construction in
performance to the town standards for an existing town road. So far as practicable, all off lines
shall be at right angles to straight street lines or radial to current street lines. The Commission
reserves the rights to allow one interior lot meeting the zoning regulations for the zoning district
within which the subdivision is located. Lots fronting on private street may be approved by the
Commission only when the subdivision will be built within the RP plan zone. No lots shall be
approved that does not have safe passage, passible access for the uses permitted within the
zone district where the subdivision will be located and for access for public safety and
emergency vehicles. When driving access will be to exterior and collector streets, the
Commission reserves the right to require the developer to combine driveways, eliminate
possible traffic hazards, or to prepare a subdivision layout with an interior residential street that
will carry traffic to the collector exterior street.
In addition the concern was the proposed six houses will have a negative impact on the
surrounding neighbors, our diminishing wetlands and upland review area. The proposed map
includes FGG drainage into the upland review area between negatively impacting our wetlands,
the toxins associated with the proposed six houses will undoubtedly be absorbed into the
protected wetlands and surrounded areas.
The application seems to be missing a soil type report. It appears they listed the soil types but
no (inaudible) as evidence. The application should be incomplete without a soil scientist report.
The Commission should also ensure that the wetlands mapping is accurate and not outdated
with the soil scientist mappings. The application is also missing an environmental scientist
impact report with an inventory offlora and fauna. An environmental scientist report would be
helpful in providing expert opinion on impact and provide possible mitigation measures. The
surrounding lots already have drainage issues due to slopes, proximity to wetlands and soil
types. The addition of impervious surface related to the proposed six new houses and large
driveway will add to the drainage problem.
Other than increased profit for the applicant, what is the public purpose or benefit, impact or
designated wetlands and farmtands. 1 request the applicant to meet with you, and your staff to
discuss this matter and voice our concerns at your earliest convenience."
This was signed, the petition itself was signed by Carli Cafussi of 255 Connecticut Avenue. As 1
noted, just a few moments ago, the petition has been signed by 88 signatures that originate on
59 addresses ofwhich two are out oftown.
Erik, if you would read the next mail?
Erik Hinckley: We have received an e-mail from Kathy Robinson at 261 Connecticut Avenue on
July13, at9:33p.m.
"
Good evening Renata Bertotti and Domenic Pane. I'm asking that this e-mail be read out loud
and recorded into the minutes during the hearing. My husband and I are homeowners on
Connecticut Avenue and our property abuts up to where the special permit to build 2 lots to
allow six houses to be built. We, along with others in the area feel very strongly against the
project for many reasons. When we bought this property, we had asked about this land behind
us and we were advised that because there were wetlands behind us there would not be
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anything built behind us. We purchased this property because in the many, many houses that
we looked at, this was the only property that had this beautiful wooded area still available. It is
calming and we enjoy seeing all the wild life around our home. When the survey first started on
this, the surveyor came onto our property, and we also were not notified that the survey was
going on. When 1 approached him he said if he knocked on the doors of people he would be
denied access to the property to do what he needed to do. He also stated that with the
wetlands in the location at the start ofthe wooded area, that no building would be permitted in
that area, that is was only for the fielded area, if anything was to be proposed. This was many,
many, many months ago, so this has been quite a surprise to us. There are lots of articles to
sort through and read through to understand the special permits and requirements. We have
had a short time to research and try to prepare for these hearings to speak out piece about this
project. We have not been allowed a proper amount oftime to research a rebuttal forthis
project.
The builder, town, and property owner have had many resources to reach out to and plan for
what they wanted to do, prepare blueprints and reach out to the town for all of the resources
needed to get this far. They have a team to do this project, to work on it day in and day out,
then the homeowners in the area are only given two weeks to speak, and that is to say we
agree or disagree. How is that a proper way of doing business? Why even give notice to the
homeowners to react when most won't know where to start to research what everything means
or know what resources to reach out to because they do not do this for a living. There has been
no time to reach out to a property owner with the proper information to review them to see our
options. As you know, there is a lot of planning that goes into a bill, especially one of this size.
This is unfair to the home owners that surround this property, to have any say and didn't have
time to contact their own surveyor for their property, or for the resources to find out how the land
or wetlands have changed over time with the current properties surrounding the area already.
Many different species of animals, plants, and soil have already changed while the Town of
Newington has evolved. The Town of Newington is not a city, which is another reason that we
wanted to move here. From the time Newington was established and split from Wethersfield, it
has changed and evolved tremendously. Houses on top of houses, wet lands surrounded by
trees, what value will this bill bring by disturbing the land in this way? What happens when that
is not good enough, and they want to build further back on the wetlands or on the mountain?
Why not try again when he was successful in getting a special permit for (inaudible.) You don't
think the wetlands will not be disturbed further? In the bill, every change in the environment in
it's structure causes change, and not always for the better. We are also just coming out of a
pandemic. Who is to say that these bills will not be halted from being built if the pandemic hits
us again and they are shut down? How do we know bills will not be delayed due to shipping
delays or shortage of material not only from the pandemic but from the last hurricane that hit
and wiped out major manufacturers? How do you know that this will not become a state of
partially built houses thatjust sit for years because the project failed in the lack of resources or
funds due to the economy. Then comes crime and depreciation of all of the properties because
of this partially built property. We're asking that this project be placed on hold until we, as
homeowners, have more time to review plans, property, and resources as needed. We are also
asking you to look at the big picture, notjust the perfect for right now, but also what can happen
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to the property in this project. Thank you for your time. Kathy Robinson, 261 Connecticut
Avenue.
Renata Bertotti: Thank you Erik, and Mr. Chair, if 1 can read the last one that 1 received. This
one came from (inaudible) McCall, and it's addressed to Chairman Pane. "I am writing to you
regarding the proposed subdivision on Connecticut Avenue in Petition 26-21 and 28-21, and a
few but not all concerns that 1 have. My first concern is for over crowding. When 1 bought my
house two years ago 1 was thrilled to find a house that didn't seem like it was in a high density
area like many towns in Connecticut. The proposed (inaudible) houses in the narrative on June
23rd, it was mentioned that historically the Town of Newington has allowed multiple interior lots
in subdivisions. While doing my own research, 1 was unable to find specific instances where
there were two interior houses stacked behind an exterior house with a single driveway. 1 have
called the Town Planner's office and spoke with Mr. Hinckley to see if he could provide
examples of plans with two interior lots and he was unable to recall any. Mind you, this was a
very brief, twenty minute phone call and if given more time for research, he very well could
have provided some examples. All this is to say that ultimately two interior houses stacked
behind an exterior is not a norm here in Newington. In Section 5.2.6 A, 1 ask the Commission
what are the express benefits of having two interior houses on each lot other than adding
density.
1 also respectfully ask the Commission to reconsider the staff notes in regards to the regulation
set forth in Section 3.4.9.1, no two interior lots shall have frontage on the same street any closer
to each other than the minimum lot for that zone except that two continuous interior lots may be
approved sharing a common driveway. And that apptication for such interior lots shall include
an agreement specifying that the owners driveway will share the responsibility for it's
maintenance. As stated in the regulations, two interior lots may share a common driveway if
they have a maintenance easement, the circulation is written, does not state four interior lots
can share a common driveway ifthey have a maintenance easement.
Are there any other instances in Newington where six houses share a common driveway? Any
instances in Newington that have four interior lots that share a common driveway? If approved,
I ask the Commission to ensure the application includes an agreement to create any addition
(inaudible) to Connecticut Avenue, in the future, particularly for the two exterior lots that will
have frontage on Connecticut Avenue.
My second concern is drainage. Nearby houses already have drainage issues in our yards with
over saturation of soil, clay. Adding six houses and impervious surface will only increase our
drainage and runoff issues as the proposed lot is at a high point on the street. The surrounding
houses will all suffer from the added impervious surface.
A few questions 1 would like to have the Commission take into consideration, has there been an
analysis done on storm water discharge and how it may negatively impact surrounding
properties? If not, 1 request a third party analysis so surrounding properties will not suffer
adverse for drainage.
My third major concern is the environmental impact that the six houses will have. We have less
and less green space in Connecticut, and if you look to the future of Newington as well as the
impact that will result from building (inaudible) Has anyone done an endangered specie list of
what might be on this properi:y and what will be disturbed by the area of construction. What are
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the plans to offset the environmental impact these six new houses will create. What is the
mitigation plan for detention or retention? How is the water discharged and cleaned before
returning to our environment.
1 hope to make the meeting tonight, but must complete a prior obligation first. 1 am requesting
that this letter to be forwarded to the Commission members and 1 also request that this letter be
read into the record verbatim at the meeting tonight so that all members of the public are made
aware of these concerns. Respectfully Carly Cafucci, 255 Connecticut Avenue.
That concludes the correspondence that we have received.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much Renata. I'll ask ifthere are any other public comments,
either for or against? Is there any other public comment? I'll go back to the applicant to see if
he wants to address anything from the comments read from Renata.
Alan Bongiovanni: Thank you very much Mr. Chairman. 1 tried to make a few notes while staff
was reading the e-mails and the petition, but 1 think when the Commission looks at the
application, looks at, and the staff reviews our testimony and our plans, how we do meet all of
these regulations. 1 think you will find that much ofthe opposition or points of opposition in that
petition probably are not valid. 1 would like to note the FTG drains on the plan, that's a footing
drain. The footing drain is natural ground water that if it comes from the surface, percolates into
the ground, and wants to intrude on the foundation, so they put drainage around it as I'm sure
most every house in the Town of Newington has since we don't have really great soil in most
areas. That's ground water, that's just to drag it away from the house so the you don't cause
property damage. That is not surface water from an outside source, subject to pollutant, the
ground water table seasonally fluctuates, if it's near the foundation it will be directed away and
directed towards the wetlands. That is the appropriate place to put it.
Ms. Robinson talked about when she bought the house, she was told that the neighboring
property would be left in its natural state. 1 have probably heard that hundreds of times in public
hearings all over the state. That seems to be a common theme. Sellers of property when they
like to embellish how nice it is. This is private property, as every house around that was part of
somebody's private property that chose to develop it, and the zoning regulations for that area,
this is no different. These people have the same rights as the developers had when you bought
your house, or when your house was created. Their rights should not be taken away. They can
develop this property and they are protected by the laws to do that, as well as we work within
the regulations, but I'm absolutely confident that we meet orexceed all ofthe requirements.
There was a lot of conversation in Ms. Robinson's letter about not enough notice, the dates of
publications of when these meetings are going to happen, the posting of signs, that's all done by
state statute. 1 don't have a say in how it's done, the Town of Newington doesn't have a say,
the state statutes govern how a development will be noticed, heard, for public hearings and
neighbors are allowed to participate. We are within the laws, this is done on the regular basis in
the Town of Newington. The Town of Newington bears the state laws and that is how things
come to be. It's not the town saying, or myself, or the applicant saying, 1 want to do this, or 1

Newington TPZ Commission

July13,2021
Page 14

want to sneak something by somebody, we are working within the regulations set forth for
everybody in the State of Connecticut.
There was a comment about overcrowding. We have a five and a half acre piece of property
here, that is proposing six houses in an R-12 Zone. That is not the definition of overcrowding.
One ofthe comments was about soil reports and wetlands. This site has actually gone before
the Wetlands Commission, the Wetlands Commission approved our development. The Town
has an official wetlands map, we worked with the town staff, we talked to them about the site,
and we met the requirements of the Wetlands Commission. In our application to them, they
have approved this. We have no work within the regulated area that we are proposing, orwithin
the wetlands itself. There will be some clearing of trees and shrubs, and brush in the upland but
well outside of the protected area and the plans have been designed to accommodate erosion
and sediment control so there is no intrusion or depredation to the wetlands or water course.
A comment came up about two interior lots per subdivision. A couple of good examples come
to mind, not current, on the extension ofValley View Drive, and the subdivision has two interior
lots creating six lots. On the corner of East Robbins Avenue and Kitts Lane, behind McDonalds,
there is a subdivision on the cornerwhere houses were built, 1 think in the early eighties, 1 think
that single subdivision has two interior lots. I'm sure there are more examples, but those just
came to mind.
When Mr. Webster first looked at this property, the comment came up about the endangered
species. There is a document called Natural Diversity Data Base that is maintained by the State
of Connecticut DEEP. 1 did query that system before we started, and there are no areas of
concern within this property or within the regulated, not the regulated areas, but the properi:ies
on the data base for species that might be endangered, or special concern.
Drainage, again we have a plan that we are working with town staff to finalize, this is a plan that
will attenuate any increase in runoff, through various measures, we used to have in our
regulations the low impact design measures that benefit the environment, as opposed to taking
away from it. One of the things that 1 did mention because we didn't get to discuss the
engineering. Especially those houses to the south, behind the existing house on the property
and that garage, there is probably an acre or plus of water that runs down to your properties.
There is a drainage pipe, and 1 think it is a footing drain from the existing house and/or barn that
comes to your property. Part of what we have designed for this property, and it's on the plans,
is that we will no longer allow all of the water to run into your backyard. We will keep it in the
swale, it will go into our designed drainage system, that will sheet flow, over land through the
upland area into the wetlands and the water course at the appropriate rate, so by allowing this
development there will be significant benefit to those neighbors to the south ofthis property.
Having said that, 1 think I have addressed the majority of the comments, again, when the
Commission reviews our plans, along with staff, you will see that we do meet and/or exceed the
regulations. That is the appropriate use for this development without creating something that
nobody really wants at the end. The ten houses, 1 know that the neighbors wouldn't want, they
are not happy about the six, but this is a good solution. It provides housing, it provides
reasonable priced housing, in a neighborhood that is in the R-12 Zone. Thank you.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much Mr. Bongiovanni. I'm going to go to the Commissioners
now. Do any Commissioners have any questions for either our Town Planner or the applicant?
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Commissioner Sobieski: Number one, this question goes to Renata, was this petition, did you
know about this petition at our last meeting?
Renata Bertotti: 1 did know about the petition and 1 had actually informed the Commission that
we had received the petition.
Commissioner Sobieski: Yes, under your report. But this seems to me, after listening to these
comments, that this should have been brought up when we decided to change the development.
This to me, everybody here should have been aware ofthat. 1 would not have voted to change
that zone. There is an awful tot of stuff here. If 1 had known that this petition was here, 1 would
have voted as 1 did.
Number two forAlan, the drainage from that proposed road, is that going into the town system,
or is that going to drain back into the wetlands?
Number three, 1 would like to see that this will never be considered for a town road. 1 would tike
to see something put on here so that a town road will never be allowed.
Chairman Pane: 1 don't think it could ever become a public road because it doesn't have the
public utilities, and it wasn't built to public, our public road standards. 1 don't think we have to
worry about that. I'll ask the applicant if he wants to answer any of these questions.
Alan Bongiovanni: Thank you Mr. Chairman. To reiterate what the Chairman was saying about
a public road, if it was going to be a public road, it would have to be a minimum width of at least
fifty feet, and that fifty feet would put the building lines at 35 feet beyond that, and the home
owners at some point said they want to be on a public road, they would make their own house
non-conforming and that is not legally allowed, so 1 don't think, beyond the construction
methods and the way it is being built, 1 don't think that could ever be a possibility. It's a private
driveway that we are proposing, although we have some in town, not as many as some
surrounding towns, it's a very common occurrence if you have spent any time in West Hartford
or Farmington, everything on the mountain in West Hartford, you have houses, ten or fifteen on
private driveways all over the place, and those houses have been there for decades and
decades.
Regarding the drainage, there is a very small, about a quarter of the site that drains toward
Connecticut Avenue. The remaining, the rest drains toward the back, there is town drainage in
the front on Connecticut Avenue where it drains today and will continue to drain in, everything
else will continue to drain out of the back with all of our pre-treatment and drainage design that
we are perfecting for the town engineering staff review.
Chairman Pane: Thank you Mr. Bongiovanni. There was one other thing 1 wanted to address
which is, we made a correction to our regulations at our last meeting. Mr. Bongiovanni, as long
as you have been in town, and as a surveyor, 1 recall that we have always allowed two rear lots
for, in our regulations. We made a correction at the last meeting because there was an error in
the subdivision regulations, and not ourzoning regulations. Do you have any comment on that?

Newington TPZ Commission

July 14, 2021
Page 16

Alan Bongiovanni: You know, sometime after 2000, the Commission took interior lots, rear lots
out of the regulations so they could further review them, and refine them. When they brought
that back, 1 think it was 2017, they very specifically said two interior lots per subdivision. At the
time that it was modified in the zoning regulations, nobody thought, or it got overlooked, to
coordinate the subdivision regulations with it. One interior lot was in the subdivision regulations
for some time when the Commission in 2017, brought this back into the regulations, said you
can have two. It should have been corrected then.
Chairman Pane: Thank you Renata, do you concur with that, with all of the records that we
have?
Renata Bertotti: 1 believe in this situation each ofthe two lots that are subject to this application
are divided and the regulations allow a common driveway for those interior lots and do not talk
about adjacent properties.
Commissioner Haggerty: This petition has been off and on the agenda since at least May, 1
don't know if anybody can comment on that, but 1 feel that this has been on and off since the
middle of May.
Renata Bertotti: If 1 may, this has been on the agenda, I don't rememberfor how long, but it has
been previously on the agenda and we had postponed it because in our review in preparation
for an actual hearing for which the signs were posted and notices sent out, we discovered this
discrepancy between the zoning regulations and the subdivision regulations, therefore the
applicant had to wait and we had to propose the changes to the subdivision regulations to meet
that match in order for this to appear in front of you. 1 believe we did sent notices twice and the
signs were posted for both hearings.
Chairman Pane: Any Commissioner questions? Renata, if you are waiting for a few additional
things, should we keep this meeting open?
Renata Bertotti: So, in regards to special permits you can either keep the public hearing open, if
you would like to see these matters that are still to be reviewed by the staff in front of you.
Alternatively, because these are essentially the site plan matters, we're talking about storm
water, drainage, we're talking about the road, we're talking about elements like that. You could,
as a Commission close the public hearing and then review this under your normal business for
Old Business for the site plan matters. My personal preference is always when there is any kind
of new information that can come up on an application that is for special permit which in itself
asks you to look at the site plan, to keep the hearing open, but that is really up to you Mr. Chair
and the rest of the Commission.
Chairman Pane: Okay. Any comments from the Commissioners?
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CommissionerWoods: Thank you Mr. Chairman. 1 was going to make a motion that we close
the public hearing because 1 do believe that the applicant, it appears that they have met all of
the conditions for this application and the few open items that remain really should be handled
by a review of the site plan. That's how 1 feel right now and the last meeting, when this was
taken up, it really had nothing to do per se, with this petition. It was more a general, granted
you can easily tie it to this petition but, 1 wasn't at the last meeting, but if the Commission
decided to go in a different direction, it might not even be here, but again, it played out the way
that it did and they are here, but again, 1 think they have met, and 1 think it's pretty clear, Mr.
Bongiovanni did an excellentjob of demonstrating it, and I do, 1 feel forthe neighbors when you
have a piece of property that is behind you for a long period oftime, and it is vacant, but it is a
private piece of property, but it is available to be developed, and 1 think the alternative with a ten
house subdivision with a public road is not good for anybody, so personally 1 would like to see
this move forward and again, close the public hearing and discuss it in Old Business.
Chairman Pane: Thank you, if you could just hold off on any motion, I'd like to hear from
Commissioner Fox.
Commissioner Fox: Thank you. To the Planner, Renata, are you satisfied that the developer,
the petitioner has adhered to all of the regulations and all ofthe staff comments. If not, 1 have to
agree with you ifthere is anything else that is going to come up, 1 think we should leave the
hearing open, because once the hearing is closed and anything else comes up that is particular
to the special permit can not and should not be discussed, so I'm advocating to keep this
petition open.
Chairman Pane: You asked a question of Renata and 1 believe Renata is stating that all of the
requirements forthe special permit have been answered, and they are only waiting for a few
comments concerning the site plan, and I'll turn it over to Renata to see if that is correct or not.
Renata Bertotti: Mr Chairm, that is correct. The site plan in this particular instance, there are
two matters at hand here right? There is the matter of special permit, for which the Commission
may or may not require a submission of a site plan. Then there is the matter of subdivision
which again the Commission may or may not require, depending on the proposals, may not
require one. In this particular instance, your subdivision application is going to be, in effect, a
site plan. So, 1 just asked James to remove the language that says, special permit and
associated site plan, to remove that associated site plan, out ofthis, otherthan that, the criteria
that you are reviewing for special permit have been satisfied. Between us, you know, I'll take
that back, minus the traffic.
Chairman Pane: Well, it's not an official traffic report, it's just a, for a six lot subdivision we don't
require an official traffic report that 1 know of. I've never hear of that ever before because
usually a traffic report is for large developments, over 40,000 square feet and above and
other.....
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Renata Bertotti: If you are satisfied, ifthe traffic report comes so that you as a Commission can
be satisfied that this is not going to create an impact with the generation oftraffic, 1 agree, six
houses, will not create an exorbitant amount oftraffic generation.
Commissioner Pane: 1 was satisfied with what the applicant stated for the traffic and feel
comfortable with it. I'll hear from any other Commissioners. Any other Commissioners have
any questions, if not, I'm going to ask Commissioner Woods to entertain a motion. Are there
any other comments?
CommissionerWoods: 1 move that we close Petition 26-21 special permit, Section 3.4.9 and
associated plan to allow interior lots at 285 Connecticut Avenue Applicant and Contact, Larry
Webster Owner JCB Management LLC, that we close the public hearing and move it to Old
Business for the potential for action.
Chairman Pane: 1 think we should move it to the next meeting for action, because the Town
Planner stated that they were waiting for a few more things for the site plan.
CommissionerWoods: Okay, move it to the next meeting for action.
Chairman Pane: Okay, and would you like to include Petition 28-21 in there.
CommissionerWoods: Yes, can 1 roll Petition 28-21 in with this?
Chairman Pane: We will vote on them separately. We have a motion for closing the public
hearing and moving it to Old Business for the next meeting from Commissioner Woods. The
motion was seconded by Commissioner Haggerty.
CommissionerWoods: Mr. Chairman, 1 had the pleasure of attending the Council meeting last
night and ifyou are not aware, as ofJuly 1st l guess roll call is no longer needed ifthe vote is
unanimous, but ifthe vote isn't unanimous, they are.
After a roll call vote, the motion passed with a 5-2 vote. (Fox, Sobieski)
CommissionerWoods moved to close Petition 28-21 special permit Section 3.4.9 to allow
interior lots and associated site plan at 293 Connecticut Avenue. Applicant and Contact, Larry
Webster, Owner, JCB Management II, LLC.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Havens.
CommissionerWoods: 1 need to put in to move this to Old Business for possible action at our
next meeting. That should be included in there.
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Commissioner Fox: The Planner has said that she is satisfied with the certain things that might
come up, so I still feel that we shoutd keep the hearing open and at the next meeting in two
weeks, we can still put it on Old Business for action that night. Thank you.
After a roll call vote, the motion passed with a 5-2 vote. (Fox, Sobieski)
C.

Petition 33-21: For a Zoning Map Change from l Zone to PD Zone at 690 Cedar
Street, Applicant and contact, Anthony Properties - Brian Shitu, Owner: Town of
Newington.

Ron Bomengen: Thankyou Mr. Chairman, Members ofthe Commission, I'll startthis
discussion and bring Brian in ifthere are any questions. I'm a professional engineerwith Fuss
and O'Neil, I'm a professional engineer in the State of Connecticut.
On behalf ofAnthony Properties, I'm here tonight to request a zone change for a property
located at 690 Cedar Street, from the Industrial Zone to the Planned Development. There is a
zone map that we included in our application, 1 believe that you all have that. The property is
comprised of approximately 3.74 acres of land located north of Cedar Street, west of the
Fastrack bus line, and south of Myra Cohen Way and the Fastrack station itself. It's adjacent to
development parcels along Myra Cohen located to the west and northwest and were all rezoned
to PD in September of 2014. Those parcels were all owned by the same owner at the time, and
were changed to the PD Zone at the same time.
The Town of Newington owned and still owns the property subject to this zone change request
and probably should have been included as the last remaining development parcel located
along Myra Cohen Way.
The site is currently a brownfield site. It was previously home to National Welding. A large
amount of the site has already been remediated, however part of it, part of any future
development at the site will require additional cleanup to Connecticut DEEP standards. The
subject property also falls in the boundaries of the transit oriented development, the TOD
overlay zone. The site has its challenges. First, as 1 mentioned before, it is a brownfield site,
and will undergo additional expenditures in orderto clean it up. Secondly the elevation ofthis
site is approximately fifteen feet lower than Cedar Street itself, which runs along the southern
edge ofthe property. Visually, it is very difficult to see the site from Cedar Street.
By changing the zone, from Industrial to Planned Development will allow more flexibility forthe
redevelopment parcel and in particular when it comes to building height requirements. The
current Industrial zone only allows a maximum ofthree stories orthe property, whereas in the
Planned Development we call allow up to four stories, maximum.
By giving a developer additional flexibility in building height, visibility to Cedar Street will be
enhanced and additional building sites can be provided off site to offset some of the additional
costs to clean the site in the future.
When considering the request for zone change, we understand the surrounding areas need to
be considered, to see ifthe proposed zone fits within the spirit ofthe surrounding uses, as well
as the town Plan of Conservation and Development. As 1 mentioned before, most of the
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surrounding parcels have already been changed to PD Zone,and for the same reasons that
support the previous application in 2014 would and should apply here.
The Plan of Conservation and Development identifies the property as an opportunity site. The
purpose ofthe property opportunity areas promote appropriate reuse ofthe redevelopment in
ways that will work well with the CCSU campus, which is in close proximity to the west, as well
as encourage transit oriented development adjacent to the Cedar Street Fastrack station.
Changing the zone to PD from Industrial will give the developer more flexibility to do just that.
As you can see on the map there, the red shaded areas, are currently zoned PD, the blue
shaded area there is the business zone, and if you keep going further to the east, on the town
zone map, there is more PD Zone beyond that Industrial zone there.
So that concludes my presentation forthis. Again, Brian Shiu, he is with Anthony Properties, he
is also on the call now, and he can answer any questions that you might have for him, or I'm
also available if you have any questions for me.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much. Appreciate it. Renata, would you like to report
anything?
Renata Bertotti: Sure, Mr. Chair, so the best that 1 can understand the history ofthis area is that
all of the properties that are currently zoned PD, belonged to a single property owner that
owned several parcels there. That property owner came to the Town and made the change of
the zoning district from 1 believe Industrial to PD in 2014. This particular parcel, which is the
only parcel remaining and directly adjacent to the other PD zoned properties, was owned by the
Town, and 1 don't know actually at the time but it was owned by the Town, but it is now. It was
never included in this private proposal for the zoning map amendment so it just remained
Industrial, but it probably should have been re-zoned at the time together with all of this other
area because the same type of questions, the same type of considerations that the Commission
entertained in 2014 as to whether or not this was an appropriate area for PD would have been
applicable in this location as well. 1 think the PD zone will allow a little bit more flexibility to the
property, it will allow perhaps a better fitting mix of uses. 1 think the PD Zone has better uses in
relation to the TOD District than an Industrial zone does. So that should be a benefit as well.
So, as you know, whenever you look at these properties for the zoning map amendment, you
should consider your Plan of Conservation and Development, off of which 1 had found several
policies and goals that this proposal meets as well as the surrounding zoning, so the
surrounding zoning check as far as the Plan of Conservation and Development is concerned, in
pages 47-54, ofthe Plan, the proposed map amendment meets policies listed on page 54 that
"opportunity" areas
say, maximize possibilities at
and sites in order to promote appropriate
reuse and redevelopment in ways which support the desired overall character and structure of
"transit
Newington; encourage
oriented" development in areas where transit stations have been
and/or will be established. The proposed map amendment further meets the policies of
Economic Development chapter ofthe POCD on page 56. There are a number of these that 1
have included in my memo to you, and in the packet that was posted on the web site.
So the stated reason, to me for the applicant to seek this map amendment was that they
needed the building height of four stories versus three stories which is allowed in the Industrial
Zone. We are talking about a potential for some residential development in this location, in the
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Industrial Zoning District, we allow three stories, but in the PD Zone we allow up to four stories,
so we are talking about one story that triggered this need for the map amendment, however as
you can see, based on the surrounding zoning that the POCD, that this meets the requirements
for the map amendment.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much Renata. 1 appreciate your report. I'll go to the
Commissioners. Do any ofthe Commissioners have any questions?
Commissioner Sobieski: Didn't the State place restrictions on what we could have in there. 1
thought there were like certain restrictions, I thought, I'm wondering by changing this ifthat
interferes with the (inaudible.)
Chairman Pane: 1 don't believe this changes anything from the original. This is only requesting
a change, this isn't a hearing on an application at all. The, when that comes in, there will be a
couple of things that they will have to comply with, that the State might have requested, but this
is not different than the adjoining property which is Hayes' property, formerly Hayes' property,
that if you recall, we changed from Industrial to PD, so 1 think this is a reasonable request. It's
in the TOD area and it provides flexibility for the developer and 1 don't have any objections to it.
1 hope that answers your question.
Commissioner Sobieski: The reason 1 was asking was, are we bound by the (inaudible) ofthe
State, that's why 1 was asking.
Chairman Pane: That doesn't apply to this application right now, but I'll ask Renata to see if she
can answer your question for you.
Renata Bertotti: 1 honestly do not know the conditions that have to be met, but I would imagine
that if there is a restriction then we know, and adhere to it. We will have to keep an eye on this.
Chairman Pane: Let's hope that that application comes in, in the near future and I'm sure they
are going to comply with all ofthe requirements of us, along with the State on that. 1 hope that
answers your questions.
CommissionerWoods: Actually 1 think moving in this direction enhances the problem. 1 don't
remember any specific regulations or objections that were put on this when we received the
brownfield grant. Again, 1 think turning it into a PD Zone doesjust the opposite, 1 know that the
State was very interested in the Town of Newington when they did purchase this and received
that grant to make sure that we used the TOD definition, and when we went forward to make
improvements on this property that we did that, and 1 believe we are moving in the right
direction, so 1 see this as a big positive for the Town and for a piece of property that the Town
actually went out on a limb in one way and made a big investment in, to purchase the land and
get it remediated so we could get it to this point. It's been a long time coming and I'm happy to
see this continue to move forward.
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Chairman Pane: Thank you Commissioner Woods. Any other questions from Commissioners?
I'm going to go to the public. Is there anyone from the public wishing to speak in favor of this
petition 33-21 ? Anybody wish to speak in favor? Anybody wishing to speak in opposition?
Anyone wishing to speak in opposition? Ifthere is no objection, 1 would entertain a motion from
the Commissioners to close Petition 33-21 and move it to Old Business for action.
CommissionerWoods: So move Mr. Chairman.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Sobieski. The vote was unanimously in favor of
the motion with seven voting YEA
VIII.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Commissioner Sobieski moved to approve the minutes ofthe June 23, 2021 regular meeting.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Fox. The vote was unanimously in favor of the
motion, with seven voting YEA.
IX.

NEW BUSINESS
A. Petition 25-21 for a subdivision at 285 Connecticut Ave, Applicant and Contact:
Larrry Webster.
B.

Petition 27-21: for a subdivision at 293 Connecticut Ave, Applicant and
Contact: LaryWebster

Chairman Pane; Petitions 25-21 and 27-21 will be on our agenda for the next meeting under
Old Business.
X.

OLD BUSINESS

Chairman Pane: I'm going to skip down to Petition 33-21 for a Zoning Map Change from l Zone
to PD Zone, at 690 Cedar Street, Applicant and Contact Anthony Properties, Brian Shiu; Owner
Town of Newington.
A. Petition 26-21: Special Permit (Sec. 3.4.9) and Associated Site Plan to allow
interior lots at 285 Connecticut Ave. Applicant and Contact: Lary Webster
Owner, JCB Management, LLC.
D. Petition 28-21: SDecial Permit (Sec. 3.4.9) and Associated Site Plan to allow
interior lots at 293 Connecticut Ave, Applicant and Contact: Lary Webster,
Owner: JCB Management II, LLC.
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E. Petition 33-21: For a Zoning Map Change from l Zone to PD Zone at 690 Cedar
Street, Applicant and contact, Anthony Properties - Brian Shiu, Owner: Town of
Newington.
CommissionerWoods moved to approve the Zoning Map amendment with an effective date of
July25,2021.
Reasons for the Approval
The proposed amendment is consistent with several conditions ofthe Town of Newington
POCD and with surrounding zoning.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Fox. The motion was approved unanimously with
seven voting YEA.
XI.

PETITIONS FOR PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULING

XII.

TOWN PLANNER REPORT

Chairman Pane: I'm going to turn it over to Renata for her report.
A.

Future Aflenda Form

Renatg Bertotti: We have the future agenda report, again, it lists all ofthe new applications that
we have been receiving. It is not as long as it was like a month ago or so, but we still have
regular business that is coming in. What you are seeing on the screen is not the most up to
date version. The most up to date version is actually shown on line, and it includes two wetland
applications. There is an application for the Zoning Board ofAppeals, for a project at 68 Ralph
Avenue. I recommend to all residents, to anybody watching this, to keep an eye on this agenda
and again, like 1 stated before, it is a tentative schedule. It says so right at the top, if you have
any questions about when something is to be in front ofthe Commission, please call us.
B. J-egislative Chanaes Summarv Report
Renata Bertotti: Like 1 said, in the packet 1 sent a list ofthe legislative updates that 1 wanted to
talk to you about, and then as 1 was starting to prepare this presentation itjust became, one of
these things, and I'm looking and saying, I'm going to be talking fortwo hours, and the
Commissioners, the most patient ones will listen for about forty-five minutes, and then just go
bye-bye on me, so 1 decided to split it. A couple of things that 1 will cover tonight, and then
James will kick in at the end to talk about meetings, and then we'll continue at the next meeting
with the other stuff.
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Accessory Dwellinci Units

1 talked to you about this at the last meeting, the new legislation now creates provisions that
allow construction of these accessory dwelling units on large single family homes. There are all
kind of questions that are coming up about this bill in regards to certain provisions of it. 1
suggest that we all take some time, read this through, see what other towns are doing, not
necessarily to copy what they are doing, butjust to see the processes that they are going
through addressing this. Then talk about whether or not the Town is interested in opting out of
this provision. We have an opt out dealing on this on January 2023,and 1 would suggest
depending on how we go with the business on our agenda that perhaps we visit this in October
or November, have a good presentation on everything which is included in the ADU provision
and then start on the Planning end and the Council end as to what we would like to do here. 1
can tell you that we have to do something, because when I looked at, compared the provisions
of these new laws, and compared that to our accessory apartment provision in our zoning
regulations they do not match. There are a few provisions in our regs that do not match the
ADU provisions in the general statutes. Ifwe decide not to opt out on the provision, we will
have to then amend our accessory apartment regulations so they are not conflicting with the
state statute.
2.

Multi-familv housino

This law, in many aspects in Newington we already meet a number ofthese things. These
changes are to strengthen each towns obligations for multi-family housing, so some ofthe
things that they included in here are these provisions about fee structure; how much money we
can charge for certain kinds of applications as compared to single family homes. We will end up
having to look at our fee structure and see whether or not we are somehow in violation of that.
We don't have anything that we would charge more for like 8-30G application, more than
another multi-family housing application, however multi-family housing applications seem to be
more expensive than what you would pay for a single family. 1 think the legislature is saying that
is not okay. The new law says that the minimum unit size that are larger than a minimum unit
size by building code are also not okay. 1 don't believe that we do that either.
The opportunities for housing, so this new law requires zoning to provide opportunities for
housing including the multi-family housing. What it also talks about is that now, what we allow
by zoning in an array of multi-family housing, must meet the need outlined in the State Plan of
Conservation and Development. So the legislation moved from you know previous language
that said your zoning regulations need to encourage for more housing, to this language of
clearing text that we are now subject to housing on a more regional and State level, and
housing needs on a regional and state level. There is a deadline for municipalities for their first
affordable housing plan, we are good with that, we have adopted ours. Every five years after
this year it will have to be updated and we can do that with the POCD as well, we can
incorporate it every ten years in the POCD and then do a five year later on.
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"Character" and
other zoning terms

So the, some ofthe more expecting things that came out ofthis bill are these requirements for
actually the State to do stuff. So, the state has to create this Commission for housing
development in the future, and the job of that Commission will be to evaluate locate policies and
about local policies related to land use, conservation, housing and (inaudible.) That
'23 with
'22 and
their analysis and their
one in
Commission must submit two reports, one in
recommendations for changes to the zoning statutes, so we need to keep an eye out, and I'll tell
you, this session, this legislative session, 1 have never seen anything like it. 1 have been
following this always, for the last fifteen, eighteen years, very closely, the new laws that come
up. No year has been like this year with just a mound of changes that came up. The process
for implementation of state plans, they will have to evaluate that as well, and the guidance and
incentives for municipalities compliance with the affordable housing plan. This Commission will
also have to create or make an update for model design guidelines and associated education
and training guidelines, so next meeting 1 will talk to you about requirements for training ofthe
staff level and the Commission level. These, this Commission is supposed to be the overseer of
those guidelines fortraining. And then, lastly the special bill 1202 requires that OPM collect,
analyze, and report data related to existing state and federal housing programs and economic
and regional certification. This report, the initial report is due by January 2022, and then every
two years, so these things that originate from this Commission on housing development and
(inaudible) and OPM report will probably be what guides a lot of state statutes that come in the
following years.
Some other changes that are worth mentioning are, for example the new law removed the
language that required the zoning regulations to consider or to be used to prevent the
overcrowding of land and avoid undue concentration of population. They explicitly eliminated
this language from the provision that says, zoning regulations must consider, they didn't say that
you are prohibited from (inaudible) this but it is not one of those main charges that the zoning
commissions, in adoption of regulations have. They also now require that regulations be
designed to protect historic, tribal, cultural and environmental resources. They are requiring that
your regulations, ourzoning regulations consider impact to adjacent municipalities. This applies
to housing, and this applies to pretty much any other land use, so they are now talking about
things such as considering the next town overwhen we designate a zoning district commercial,
like we actually have to understand what is going on at the border. The regulations must
address disparities and housing needs, and address the opportunity including employment and
education. I'm not quite sure how zoning regulations will be able to do that. Promote the
efficient application review. This pertains again, mainly to the housing where there is a pretty
significant push to provide a streamline process ofthe application review. The regulations must
affirmatively further the purposes of the Federal Fair Housing Act. There is a language that is
changed from before when the Commission acted on certain types of applications, such as
special permit, you were allowed to consider the character of the neighborhood. They have
actually defined character to be a physical characteristic ofthe site where this is proposed and
structures on it, so what this has eliminated is any kind of ambiguous character considerations
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that are used by some municipalities in perhaps an improper way. Also, zoning cannot prohibit
these small scale home based food structure.
4.

Outdoor Dining

This was another bill that got passed and it effectively extended the provisional ofthe
Governor's executive order to March of 2022. So what is right now allowed if you want to have
an outdoor dining at the restaurant, the town staff has to return an application like response
within ten days. We have to approve it, or disapprove it and ifwe disapprove it we need to say
why so that they can modify the plans. The recommendation requirements are quite relaxed,
they do not ask for too much on these kind of things, conditions for use of public sidewalks at
the restaurant are allowed, and there is, actually adopted an automatic extension which is what 1
was worried about when we did our amendment to the text. They are also waiving, they have
waived and continue to waive the provisions for the parking, the parking requirements. Now
what is going to happen, come April 1, 2022 is, municipal zoning will have to allow outdoorfood
and beverage as an accessory use, as of right, to a licensed food establishment. So we are
effectively prohibited from asking for a special permit for outdoor dining in any zoning district,
where ever there is a restaurant. When 1 originally talked to you, this is an example of over
correction. This is one ofthose times when something is wrong and then it is corrected, but it is
corrected to a point where, right now I'm not so such, like 1 was quite sure just up until a few
months ago that we should allow restaurants pretty much every where as of right, now I'm not
so sure, because we can not set those limits on impact. What we can do however under this
new law, and that is what 1 will propose to you in subsequent regulation amendments is we still
can regutate how do we allow this. While this is going to be all as of right on my counter or by
you on a separate application cannot require a special permit, we can, for example count a
percentage of outdoor space because it is an accessory use, so as an accessory use it needs to
be smallerthan the original use, so ratherthan using that analogy offourtables, ortwenty
patrons, we can say twenty-five percent or fifty percent of the existing restaurant can be as of
right, outdoor dining. We can control the tiquor control, we can control (inaudible) through
regulation signage, we can't control noise, not by decibels, but awe can at least regulate hours
of operation through the explicit language in the regulations, so that is how we will do that so
that we don't counteract and then again, require too many special permits for restaurants just
because an outdoor dining somehow needs to be approved by the Commission.
5.

Recreational Cannabis

This is the last one that 1 will talk about tonight. The State also adopted restrictive cannabis
laws. They have provided a bunch of definitions for the uses that are listed on the screen, but 1
think a couple that we need to focus on are cannabis establishment, hybrid retailer, and then
microcult retailer. Those are the uses that we very likely will end up considering for what we do.
1 need you to know, iften percent ofthe electorate petition the Town actually can decide
whether or not the town would like to prohibit sale and production of cannabis. So there is a
provision that actually allows, and some towns have already started to think about prohibiting
this kind ofsale and production in their communities.
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The, in addition to the municipal tax revenue which on this bill forthis particular use, a
municipality will see proceeds of three percent of municipal sales tax, and this is on top of the
sales, state sales tax. The monies that are collected from this, from these kind of sales can be
used for streetscape improvements, neighborhood development improvements, education
programs, youth employment, training programs, services for individual municipalities, mental
health, youth bureaus and community (inaudible) entertainment. So there is a specific program
into which this funds can be spent on. On top ofthis though, the bill also allows municipalities
for the first thirty days after the cannabis retailer hybrid retailers, to charge them up to a certain
amount of money, $50,000.00 1 believe for any reasonable costs for public safety services
relating to the opening or direct traffic. There are rules, about what you can regulate through
zoning with this, and 1 will address that with the next slide, so by zoning you can decide to
prohibit this, ifthere is like ten percent electoral petition, orwe can decide to not do anything,
and stay silent on it, and in that case, these uses will be treated as similar uses, so for example,
if 1 have somebody who is just selling, 1 would treat that as any other store. If we have a micro
cultivator, that would be treated probably like an industrial type of use and allowed in that type of
district. Ifwe decide to control it, we can review it for specific things. The municipality can,
under the law, only allow no more than one retail and one micro cultivator for 25,000 residents.
There is a lot of discussion right now as to what does this mean? When 1 originally read this,
my reading of this was that we would only allow one, one of each because you have to come to
25,000 and then above that you get one. There is an opposing opinion that no, it's for each
25,000 you get one, so over 25,000 you get another one, so we're kind of all trying to figure out
what it all means, but how many, but we are talking for the Town of Newington, one or two, of
each.
Under zoning, what we can regulate if we decide to go that way, if we decide if we want to
provide this under the special permit, we can reasonably restrict hours and signage, and
proximity to you know, churches, schools, similar to what we do with the liquor regulations. Any
time we adopt any type of change related to cannabis, we have to report it to the OPM
Secretary and that is a staff requirement. We also, as a town, cannot prohibit delivery to our
town when it is done by an authorized individual.
So the public burning of cannabis can be regulated, again I think municipalities 1 don't think
municipalities of more than 50,000 residents must designate a place where public consumption
of cannabis is permitted. We are under that threshold so we don't have to do that and we may
regular any kind of outdoor smoking, and we would probably do that the same way we regulate
regular smoking of cigarette.
The growing of cannabis is not an agricultural function. 1 am going to leave this presentation on
the site for a while so that people can review, if anybody has any questions, please call me. I'm
providing the link to the presentation that Commissioner Sobieski mentioned at the last meeting
which indeed was excellent, done by CRCOG and Halloran and Sage, Mike Ziska of Halloran
and Sage. So the first link is to that, the second link is to (inaudible) a summary and their
explanation of it, and then there is a full list of bills provided on the last link. 1 would suggest that
you start looking at some of this a little bit, and then we will wrap up the legislative summary at
the next meeting, and then later on it probably all leads to we assess how much in that we want
to we also are going to have the regulation changes. That is all getting very complicated.
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The next thing that 1 had 1 will turn over to James, because he is going to tell you about the
meeting.
Chairman Pane: Before we go to that, Commissioner Sobieski, you had a question?
Commissioner Sobieski: Renata a quick question. Even when 1 attended the meeting with
CRCOG I wasn't really, 1 was confused about cottage groups. 1 know that people were making
jams and jellies and whatnot, but would that also be under zoning and/or health, or a combined
application 1 guess.
Renata Bertotti: So the cottage food requires as 1 know, 1 don't know if the Town of Newington
does combined applications, the statute that we are dealing with are just zoning statutes, so
what you are talking about, you can prohibit production ofthis food by zoning. Whether or not
the Health Department actually goes into that house and inspect it for the type of stove, sink, or
something, 1 don't really know and 1 don't think that in these statutes we can be necessarily
concerned with that. On the zoning end, we can prohibit that and get involved. A lot of
language about, potentially non-toxic and potentially (inaudible).
Chairman Pane: Renata, don't we have one already that has come in for the cottage food
already for a baking operation and you approved it administratively?
Renata Bertotti: Was that when 1 was here, Erik, do you remember that?
Erik Hinckley: 1 have had discussions with a couple of individuals about potentially doing that,
but 1 never got anything in writing.
Renata Bertotti: 1 believe they wanted to sell, right, they wanted to sell from the house?
Erik Hinckley: That was one of the things, yes,
Chairman Pane: 1 remember talking about it, in the past. If there are no other questions at this
time, we'll go to James, he is going to talk about meetings.
James Krupienski: Good evening. On your screen you will see a brief primer that was put
togetherthrough the FOI Commission. It's not official yet, they are still vetting some ofthe
provisions of the implementer bill, but it does give us a brief overview into how our meetings will
take place between now and April of 2022, which is when a report is due to the government on
the best way to implement hybrid meetings for all Commissions, whether it be state or local. So,
the most important one that I want to emphasize is the regular held, solely or in part
electronically and 1 think this is our best route to follow. Specifically because it gives us the
flexibility to have a location, have a quorum in place, not have to worry about, a good example
was our meeting where thunder and lightning shut us down multiple times. Ifwe had had that
happen, we would have had to put our meeting on hold for up to a half hour before we could
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start it under these provisions. So being in a physical room with a quorum of your membership
will alleviate that problem.
There are a couple of new issues that we will run into under this. One of them is now we have a
notice requirement, we get that mostly on the state level, now we are also required to notify the
Commissioners there is an upcoming meeting and we are also to post that notice in the office as
well as in the Town Clerk's office and on our web site, if we have one, which we do. That
provision is something new for us, normally we would simply publish an agenda, post it within
24 hours and we're good to go. In this aspect, we are getting another layer on top of that just to
be able to notify what is going on.
Again, nothing changes with our agendas, whether it be a special meeting, a regular meeting,
you are still 24 hours prior. The FOI Commission has actually ruled that for notification to the
Commission members, an e-mail is sufficient as well, you will still receive a ZOOM invite from
us, so you can consider that your pre-notification even though we will send out a notification on
the site for the notice and well as the agenda. One suggestion that 1 would make to the
Commissioners as well as to the public definitely go onto our web site, make sure you are
registered to receive notifications for boards and Commissions you are interested in. That way,
any time we post anything, whether it be your public notices, the notice ofthe meeting, the
agenda of the meetings, or the minutes, you will receive the notifications that it is being
scheduled or new data has been added to it.
The next piece, this is the one that 1 am hoping not to run into because it puts additional
burdens on the Town. So, we do something just electronically going forward right now, and
within 24 hours prior to the meeting a member ofthe public who wants to attend does not have
the electronic means to be able to do that, the Town is then required to place them in a location
with a device in order to allow them to attend your meeting, because you are completely virtual
and you do not have a physical location where you are within the municipal building. That's the
main reason I'm suggesting that we have at least a minimum quorum in person in the rooms,
that will alleviate us having to go through that process. We're lucky enough that the new
Council chambers allow for presentations by the applicants, will allow us to do our
presentations, it will allow us to manage the cameras inside the room between the dais where
you will sit, as well as the public participation table camera as well and at this point, until we are
connected out to NCTV complete, we will still broadcast that as we are doing this evening, by
picking up the signal from ZOOM and making sure that it is available. One ofthose new
requirements is that we need to make sure that the meeting is posted to our web site, within
seven days. For us, we're lucky, it goes up the same second that we are handling the meeting,
so at closure it is available to the public, at any point they can go back, they can review it, they
can do whatever they want with it.
There is a small provision inside of it that allows them to possibly download it, we'll have to have
that conversation with FOI specifically because it may end up being that they request that
through us as a FOI request and we have the ability to send out links to our Zoom, but 1 really
don't want to have to manage that piece of it, and it would be easier to get a request for that
record and say, 1 want to have the meeting from July 10th, whatever it may be, they come in with
a flash device or they request a CD of it, and we provide it to them. It's a much simpler process
for us.
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As CommissionerWoods alleged earlier, ifwe are having a meeting, ifyou have any members
who end up being virtual, so it's not specific to the in persons, but if you have a member who is
viri:ual they will not be required in the minutes to indicate that they are attending virtually. That
is a new piece and then, this was the piece about the quorum of membership and losing our
ability. This right here is relative to that posting, this is a new change for us. We currently leave
it as a permanent archive, it's been up there since we started in April of 2020 and all ofthe
meeting, for anybody who has needed it, are up on our page, now we have the ability to remove
them after 45 days. We don't intend to do that because they are a benefit to staff as well as the
public.
Special meetings, not a lot has changed, again, we have the notice in the 24 hour agenda
posting, and this is the piece that we were just talking about earlier, votes taken by roll call on a
regular or special meeting using a electronic equipment, so if you do have membership that is
attending virtually, this is where we need to make sure, if you do not have a unanimous vote, we
are specially going through the process, doing a roll call vote. We already indicated in the
beginning ofthe minutes whether or not they are attending virtually or in person, so that piece 1
already covered and that indicates how a person is attending that meeting.
This is the part that makes it difficult for us, that opportunity ifwe are fully virtual, setting up that
location for the public to be able to attend and comment. In this aspect, we don't have the
technology available right now with the chip shortages, that is a difficult thing. We are in the
process oftrying to order new technologyjust for the council chambers, we are still eight to
twelve weeks out on delivery, that is much longer than we would like to do, but it happens.
Because you as a Commission have allowed public comment, this is another piece we have to
make sure is available, unless you are in person, so that is one ofthe reasons that1am
recommending to all boards and commissions to attempt to be in person if possible, if not fully,
with at least a full quorum.
Then, as we have been doing through the entire pandemic, making sure that members of the
public as well as members of the committee are identifying themselves prior to speaking. Mr.
Chairman, you are very good about making sure that you at least recognize who is looking to
speak, and recognizing them speaking their names before they start to speak as well. In that
piece, we are actually covered very well. We do have a couple of board that are still working
that out even a year later, but it is something that we will work on.
This is the piece that causes the problem if we are in virtual. So, if we ran into the same
situation that we did about two months ago, and we kick off an amount of members necessary
to hold a quorum at our meeting, we now have to wait 30 minutes or your determination, Mr.
Chairman, to restart the meeting. Ifwe can't obtain that quorum after two hours, that meeting
would then to adjourned to another date or moved onto your next agenda packet. This is why it
is best to have people in person and attend everything that we can in that room. It saves the
hassle of not having to go through, make a notification to our website , indicate when they think
we are going to bring that meeting back in and resume discussions and review applications.
That is something that staff doesn't have that time to be able to manage, and a lot of times who
is running the meeting may not have access to the web site either. So, it creates a logistical
nightmare for us and then the, last but not lease, and we pray that we don't run into this, and we
"disturbances"
I'll say orwhat
have been lucky through this entire time period to not have an
they like to call Zoombombing, where we end up having to disconnect somebody or disconnect
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an entire meeting, but that provision is in there where you can remove a person until they have
calmed down and started to act properly, or you can remove them for the entire meeting until
the end of it, if they refuse to adhere to the rules of the day.
So, those are really the high lights to it. I'm expecting from my association to receive a really, a
more in depth listing and overview of this tomorrow. Once we do get that we will pass that
along to everybody, so ifthere are any changes that we have noticed within the law, we will
make sure that everybody is aware of it before, or hope that everybody is in person on the 28th,
and that is our proposal for the Council being back in person on the 27th as well, so we will be
working those details out.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much James. CommissionerWoods, you have a question?
Commissioner Woods: What is the effective date of all of this for all committees and
commissions? Is it the 28th of July?
James Krupienski: Technically it is, it was signed last Monday. So, and that's why it's so new
and this aspect, while we are fully virtual right now, when we advertise that meeting, and posted
that meeting, this bill had not been signed. This was the full implementer bill, so really it's still
up in the air is all I can say. I'm hoping to get a little more direction tomorrow to say when they
think it is going to go fully into effect and how they want to see it implemented between now and
April 30th.
Chairman Pane: CommissionerWoods, are you all set or do you have anything else?
CommissionerWoods: I guess I'm really curious to see now that we are going back into a
special session and the Delta variant is become more prevalent throughout the state, ifthey will
refine this and go back to solely electronic meetings.
James Krupienski: We do have that option. That is the reason that they gave us different
options in this listing. We have the option between now and April 30, 2022 to handle our
meetings in any of the three fashions. It could be virtual, hybrid virtual, or in person. If we run
into a variant where it is getting back into town again, at that point, the Town Manger will make
that decision, to go back to full virtual.
CommissionerWoods: The only draw back to that, the way that this law is written right now, if
somebody requests that they can't get there now, you have to provide them with the equipment
to do it, or get them to a place which you just said you can't do, so that could bring us to a
standstill.
James Krupienski: Exactly. The logistics arejust the difficult part, yes, we do have people
doing remote work right now, but we have only a couple of laptops that we can put somewhere,
but that also requires a staff member to be present in order to be sure that something doesn't
walk away.
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CommissionerWoods: Forthe legislature and the FOI Commission, based on all ofthe Delta
variances that are coming out right now, do they need to make changes that will be much more
acceptable and usable for the towns.
Chairman Pane: If we are all virtual, then we have to comply with providing somebody with a
laptop to view things. Ifwe are meeting in person, that doesn't apply at all, correct?
James Krupienski: That is correct.
Chairman Pane: 1 think we talked about this at our last meeting, 1 think the majority ofthe
Commissioners said that they were willing to meet back in person. 1 will go through the list right
now, I have no problems with it, do all ofthe Commissioners feel that they have no problem with
meeting again forthe 28tt1 in person.
Commissioner Havens, no problem; Commissioner Sobieski, no problem; Commissioner Fox,
no problem; Commissioner Haggerty, no problem; Commissioner Gill, no problem,
Commissioner Braverman, CommissionerWoods, no problem.
Commissioner Woods: 1 think that the way that we are holding these meetings right now and
primarily because ofJames and the excellentjob that he is doing, 1 think the public is going to
suffer a little bit because James is putting everything on the screen, as fast as we talk about it, it
is up there, it is highlighted, he does an amazing job and no offense to staff, but that is going to
go away.
Chairman Pane: 1 think that is going to stay, because we're going to be offering the applicants
an opportunity to be able to come in, instead of coming in personally they can come in by Zoom,
so we will still have that, is that correct James?
James Krupienski: Yes, we will still be running the meetings behind the scenes until we have
something going on with NCTV's connection, Zoom will still be part of it, so we will still ensure
that we will look as good as we did before. 1 assured the Council of that last night as well.
CommissionerWoods: James, the biggest complaint right along is that people can't see the
information that is being presented, so as much as 1 know people want to be there, they want to
touch, they want to feel, this is an incredible way to do this. 1 don't want to see that go away, so
somehow we need to adopt this technology into our regular meetings moving forward.
James Krupienski: That actually is a provision that the Town Manager and 1 have been talking
about, we are hoping to start training some ofthe staff members as well, and maybe bringing
another staff person with us to meetings, just so that we have some backup. It will take a little
while, in the beginning 1 was not perfect in doing it, but you learn the process as you go through
and get quickerwith it and we will ensure that we still look as good as we did when we started
the process.
CommissionerWoods: Again, thank you James and thank you Mr. Chairman.
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Chairman Pane: That's a geat comment, and James has been an unbelievable job, and 1 do
remember that was a comment from a lot of people that they couldn't see the things on the
screen so I'm glad to hear that we are making some changes to keep that benefit or the public.
1 will reach out to Commissioner Claffey and Commissioner Lenares, 1 will fill them in that on
July 28th we will be meeting in person.
Commissioner Woods: Actually Commissioner Lenares just texted me that he is in.
XIII.

COMMUNICATIONS

Chairman Pane: Did everybody get their CRCOG letters?
Renata Bertotti: Mr. Chair, before we go into the Communication 1 has one more thing to report
that came to my office after the agenda was published.
James, ifyou could showthe building elevations proposed and approved. So the (inaudible)
approached me the other day proposing some changes to the approved building elevations.
What you see on your screen is what the Commission had approved at some point, some years
ago 1 suppose, there were dormers on the roof, and the building fa?ade was a two color
scheme, instead ofthat, due to some energy efficient issues, as well as this continuation of
colors that are on the approved renderings, they are proposing, instead proposing to construct
this. Now this raises to a level of administrative approval and I am submitting this to you in a
manner of a report essentially. 1 am working with them, 1 had asked them to still do perhaps two
colors and still do some changes, I'm asking ifthey would change some ofthe material on these
buitdings as well, but I'm brining this to you in a manner of report and 1 am essentially asking
you if you want to see anything that we approve on a staff level, anything that relates to
changes to the special permit or things tike that. We are not obviously going to bring every
single zoning permit to you for review, but 1 think when we approve slight, minor changes to the
special permit, perhaps you would want to see it. So I'm proposing this as a report and a future
direction to help me.
Chairman Pane: Any comments from Commissioners? 1 think ifthere is something that is
major, 1 think it is nice that you bring it to us. 1 think that our staff is more than qualified to make
decisions, and it is in your purview, and 1 don't have a problem with you making, along with the
staffto make decisions. I'm sure you are going to try to get the best possible design that you
can, and 1 don't have a problem with the color changes that they have here, or the removal of
the dormers. Do any of the Commissioners have a comment?
CommissionerWoods: Just to thank Renata for bringing this to us, just to keep us informed, 1
appreciate that.
Renata Bertotti: With this project, 1 also would like the Commission to know, along with the
Public that this project sounds like it is going to start construction this fall, perhaps even as early
as September. In particular, they will be doing some road widening in this section of Cedar
Street and come September school will be session, there is going to be some traffic on this
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road, and 1 did ask them to advise me as soon as they know so we can post like a week or two
ahead oftime, and we will post as much as we can on the web site and social media just to
advise people, ifthey can, avoid traveling on this road while this road widening is happening.
XIV.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION (For items not listed on the agenda; each speaker limited
to two minutes.)

Rose Lyons, 46 Elton Drive: 1 am just curious about how much the public is going to be able to
see in the council chambers. As much as 1 want to come back in person and see the
presentations, after looking at the room last Tuesday when 1 went in to pay my taxes, it doesn't
seem that there is going to be much of a difference in the visibility in the council chambers as it
stands right now. 1 know that you can't answer those questions, because it is not the time for
responses, or back and fori:h, butjust something that I'm going to decide whether I'm going to
stay home and watch on my 45 inch TV or sit and put a crink in my neck trying to turn and look
at the screen on the side of the room.
Chairman Pane: 1 don't mind answering that Rose, 1 believe right in front of where the
Councilors sit, and in front ofwhere the public sits, there is a monitor, a two sided monitor so
that the councilors can see the monitor and the people who are out in the public can see the
same monitor, so 1 believe it is double faced, James can correct me if I'm wrong, but 1 believe
that there is a large improvement being able to see presentations in that room. James, if you
could confirm that for me?
James Krupienski: You are correct. There are two monitors one that does face the council dais
and one that faces the public area. We will be actually adding in two additional television
monitors, one to the south wall and one to the north wall, as well that will allow for greater
visibility in the room as well.
Rose Lyons: That's good to hear. Thank you very much.
Chairman Pane: Thank you Rose.
Rose Lyons: That's it for tonight.
Chairman Pane: Anyone else from the public wishing to speak?
XV.

REMARKS BY COMMISSIONERS

None
XVI.

CLOSING REMARKS BY THE CHAIRMAN

Chairman Pane: 1 want to thank everybody, 1 think we had an excellent meeting and I'll look
forward to seeing everybody in person on July 28th.
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ADJOURN

CommissionerWoods moved to adjourn the meeting. The motion was seconded by
Commissioner Fox. The meeting was adjourned at 9: 45 p.m.
Respectfully submyted,

Addis,
Recording Secretary

